
 

Page | 1  
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Regular Board Meeting 

August 14, 2023 

Jeffersonville Branch, 5:30pm 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Adoption of Agenda 

IV. Public Comment Period 

V. Approval of July 10, 2023 meeting minutes  

VI. Financial Reports  

a. Treasurer’s Report 

b. Monthly Financial Reports through August 13, 2023 

Payment of Bills through August 13, 2023 

VII. Director’s Report 

VIII. New Business 

a. Budget Transfers 

b. Budget Carryovers 

c. Board Meeting Schedule 

d. Insurance Renewal 

e. Amazon Account 

f. Board Meetings Policy 

g. Temporary Membership Policy 

h. Personnel Policy 

IX. Old Business 

a. DEL Heating/Cooling Upgrades 

b. JEF Heating/Cooling Upgrades 

c. Board of Trustees Statement on Materials Challenges 

X. Committee Reports  

• Building 

• Personnel 

• Donations 

• Finance 

• Bylaws 

• Nominating 

• FOL Liaison 

• Executive 

XI. Dates to Remember 

a. See monthly online newsletter 

b. RCLS Annual Meeting and Awards Ceremony 

XII. Correspondence 

XIII. Adjournment 

Next Meeting: Monday, September 11, 2023 at 5:30pm, Tusten-Cochecton Branch 

https://bit.ly/WSPLAugust2023Newsletter
https://rcls.libcal.com/event/10837120


 

Page | 2  
 

 

 

 

I. New Business 

a. Budget Transfers: Transfer of funds from lines with budgeted money remaining to lines 

that were over budget. See report. 

b. Budget Carryovers: Monies received from outside sources for programs not yet 

completed in the 2022/23 fiscal year.  See report. 

c. Board Meeting Schedule: Review updated schedule for the remainder of 2023.  Approve 

changes. 

d. Insurance Renewal 

e. Amazon Account: Approve the use of Amazon’s Pay by Invoice option and approve the 

first payment if it falls in between board meetings. 

f. Board Meetings Policy: Review new policy. 

g. Temporary Membership Policy: Review revisions to the cost of a temporary membership. 

h. Personnel Policy: Review the revisions. 

II. Old Business 

a. DEL Heating/Cooling Upgrades: Update on the project. 

b. JEF Heating/Cooling Upgrades:  Rescind the resolution approved at the July meeting for 

the Jeffersonville project due to the lack of a written estimate. 

c. Board of Trustees Statement on Materials Challenges 

 



 
 

Unapproved Minutes of the Board of Trustees Reorganization Meeting @ Delaware Free Branch 

July 10, 2023 

Members Present:  Francis Cape, Phyllis Haynes, Kevin McDonough, Linda Pomes, Pam Reinhardt, 

Barbara Winfield.  Present via Zoom:  Sue Bodenstein, Evan Eisenberg.  Absent:  Amber Novikov 

Staff Present: Audra Everett – Director 

Call to Order: At 5:42 p.m. the meeting was called to order by President Linda Pomes with the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

Nomination Committee Report and Election of Officers  

In the absence of Nominating Chairperson, President Linda Pomes presented the following Slate of 

Officers: President Linda Pomes; Vice President Evan Eisenberg; Financial Officer Pam Reinhardt; 

Secretary Amber Novikov.   Motion to approve the entire Slate as presented by Kevin McDonough, 

second by Francis Cape – approved by unanimous consent. 

Swearing in of new Board members:  Phyllis Haynes was sworn in at the meeting.  Sue Bodenstein was 

sworn in on July 5,2023. 

Financial Matters: 

On a motion by Phyllis Haynes second by Barbara Winfield, the checking account signatures of President 

Linda Pomes, Financial Officer Pam Reinhardt, Evan Eisenberg was approved by unanimous consent.  

Appointments: 

On a motion by Barabara Winfield second by Kevin McDonough, the Jeff Bank was approved by 

unanimous consent as the official bank. 

On a motion by Kevin McDonough second by Phyllis Haynes, the Sullivan County Democrat and River 

Reporter were named as official newspaper. Barbara Winfield abstained.  Approved by unanimous 

consent. 

Committee Appointments: 

On a Motion made by Barbara Winfield second by Kevin McDonough, the following appointments were 

approved by unanimous consent. 

Executive: all officers                                                                                                                                                   

Financial Committee: Chairperson Pam Reinhardt, Kevin McDonough, Amber Novikov (not present will 

advise her confirmation).                                                                                                                                                               

Personnel Committee: Chairperson Francis Cape, Kevin McDonough, Barbara Winfield  

 



 
Building Committee: Chairperson Barbara Winfield, Amber Novikov, Pam Reinhardt                                       

By-Laws Committee: Chairperson Evan Eisenberg, Sue Bodenstein, Phyllis Haynes                                

Donations: Phyllis Haynes                                                                                                                                          

Nominations:  Sue Bodenstein                                                                                                                                                 

FOL: Evan Eisenberg                                                                                                                                                                 

Ad hoc Outreach Committee: disbanded 

Board of Conflict of Interest:  All Trustees have been directed to sign the required Conflict of Interest 

form and return. 

Review of Bylaws:  Trustees were asked to review Bylaws and come back in the future with any 

comments. 

Adjournment: On a motion by Kevin McDonough second by Francis Cape the reorganization meeting was 

adjourned by unanimous consent @ 6:03. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Unapproved Minutes of the Board of Trustee Meeting July 10, 2023 

Delaware Free Branch 

Members Present:  Francis Cape, Phyllis Haynes, Kevin McDonough, Linda Pomes, Pam Reinhardt, 

Barbara Winfield.  Present via Zoom:  Sue Bodenstein, Evan Eisenberg.  Absent:  Amber Novikov 

Staff Present: Audra Everett – Director 

Call to Order:  At 6:05 p.m. by President Linda Pomes 

Adoption Of Agenda:  Motion made by Francis Cape second by Kevin McDonough – approved by 

unanimous consent. 

Approval of June 12. 2023 minutes:  Motion by Barbara Winfield second by Pam Reinhardt – approved by 

unanimous consent. 

Financial Reports:  Motion to approve Check Register and Treasurers Report made By Kevin McDonough 

second by Pam Reinhardt – approved by unanimous consent. 

Payments of Bills through July 9,2023:  Motion to approve payment of Bills by Barbara Winfield second 

by Phyllis Haynes – approved by unanimous consent. 

New Business: 

a.  Motion to accept resignation of Tammie Vargas effective as of June 30, 2023 made by Barbara 

Winfield second by Francis Cape – approved by unanimous consent. 

b. DEL Heating/Cooling Upgrades – The following Resolution #1, 2023/2024 was made by Pam 

Reinhardt second by Kevin McDonough- approved by unanimous consent.  “The application and 

accompanying documents for the public library construction aid to be administered in 

accordance with the requirements of Education Law §273-a (as Amended by Chapter 148 of the 

laws of 2014) and Commissioner’s Regulation §90.12 was read and duly adopted, and the 

condition outlined in the RCLS Assurance letter have been accepted by the Board of Trustees of 

the Western Sullivan Public Library. 

c. JEF Heating/Cooling Upgrades – The following Resolution #2, 2023/2024 was made by Francis 

Cape second by Barbara Winfield - approved by unanimous consent.  “The application and 

accompanying documents for the public library construction aid to be administered in 

accordance with the requirements of Education Law §273-a (as Amended by Chapter 148 of the 

laws of 2014) and Commissioner’s Regulation §90.12 was read and duly adopted, and the 

condition outlined in the RCLS Assurance letter have been accepted by the Board of Trustees of 

the Western Sullivan Public Library. 

d. Board Trustees Statement on Materials Challenges: Tabled until August 2023 

 



 
 

Old Business: 

a. FOIL Policy:  Motion to approve Foil Policy as amended by Francis Cape second by Barbara 

Winfield – approved by unanimous consent. 

Motion to adjourn meeting @ 6:33 made by Kevin McDonough second by Barbara Winfield - approved 

by unanimous consent. 

Next meeting: Monday August 14, 2023 5:30pm, Jeffersonville Branch 

 

 

 

 

 



























 

1 | P a g e  
 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

August 14, 2023 

 

Building/Equipment: 

Callicoon: The current split units were evaluated.  We received an estimate for the replacement of current 

units and adding a new unit to the addition area on the second floor, and recommendations to make the 

system more efficient.  Buck Moorhead Architect is working on bid documents for the 

cornice/repointing/window restoration project.   

Jeffersonville: The sewer lateral was replaced on Monday, July 24, 2023.  The existing sewer lateral was 

over the village water main.  The new one went beneath it so it will have more coverage to prevent 

freeze-ups. The trench will settle for a couple of weeks before paving is completed.   

Narrowsburg: The pear tree on the side of the building split and half fell in the parking lot.  Thank you to 

the town for cleaning it up.  We need to decide what to do with the other part of the tree. 

Finance:   

See reports. 

Personnel: 

The Narrowsburg Library Branch Manager advertisement was posted system-wide, on social media, in-

house and online in July.  Candidates will be interviewed this month. 

Professional Development/Meetings: 

7/14/2023: SUPLA Meeting 

8/9/2034: Directors Association Meeting 

8/11/2023: SUPLA Meeting 

Programs:  

View newsletter.   

Strategic Plan Progress:  

The managers, programmers, multimedia tech and I will review the progress on current goals. 

Monthly Statistics:  

See statistics in “Other Items” on libguide.  

 

Other:  

View the RCLS calendar at www.rcls.org for upcoming Trustee trainings.   

RCLS Annual Meeting & Awards Presentation in Goshen.  REGISTRATION IS REQUIRED.   

SUPLA is planning a Legislative Lunch in September.  More details to come.   

https://bit.ly/WSPLAugust2023Newsletter
http://www.rcls.org/
https://rcls.libcal.com/event/10837120


Western Sullivan Public Library
Monthly Reports for All Branches for July 2023

July Circulation Callicoon Jeffersonville Narrowsburg e-Circulation
Adult Books 697 835 618 Type Jul 2022 Jul 2023

Young Adult Books 74 36 42

Callicoon e-
content 356 415

Children's Books 649 455 252

Jeffersonville 
e-content 527 625

Periodicals 6 21 6

Narrowsburg 
e-content 249 285

Audiobooks 35 14 20

Kanopy films 
(# of videos 
played) 511 692

Museum Pass (Apr-Dec) 4 2 2 Total 1643 2017
DVDs 486 379 152

Other 38 31 4

2023 Totals 1985 1773 1096
2022 Totals 1725 2042 1048

Curbside Pickup Appointments
Callicoon 0

Wireless usage per branch Jeffersonville 0

July 2022 July 2023 Narrowsburg 4

Callicoon 6110 3638
Jeffersonville 1549 1011
Narrowsburg 3357 1535

Total 11016 6184 Patron Count at the Library
Jul 2022 Jul 2023

Computer Use Callicoon 1226 1173

July 2022 July 2023 Jeffersonville 1328 1096

Callicoon 76 108 Narrowsburg 895 836

Jeffersonville 69 60 Total 3449 3105

Narrowsburg 72 54

Total 217 222

Reference questions 
Jul 2022 Jul 2023

Internet/Social Media July 2022 July 2023 Callicoon 135 189

Instagram followers 1087 1185 Jeffersonville 93 153

Facebook  followers 1121 1228 Narrowsburg 119 141

Metaverse video views 19.6k 6,592 Total 347 483
Website users 2,303 2,018
Website sessions 3449 2894
Website page views 5499 4094
Podcast Downloads 203 36

Monthly eNewsletter
1 email sent to 
564 subscribers

353 opens/74 
clicks

Mailchimp weekly email blasts
5 weekly emails to 
1,483 subscribers

3,018 
opens/217 

clicks

Date Program
Platform(s)/   
Type

Target 
Audience

Attendance/
Views in 24 
hours

7/3/2023 Narrowsburg Knitters In-Person Adult 5
7/3/2023 Hybrid Open Technical Support In-Person Adult, PCC 1
7/5/2023 Game Club In-Person Adult 3
7/6/2023 Sewcial Circle In-Person Adult 6
7/7/2023 Art Workshop In-Person Adult 4
7/7/2023 First Fridays In-Person Adult 35



7/10/2023 Narrowsburg Knitters In-Person Adult 8
7/10/2023 Cartoon Club NAR youth 14
7/11/2023 storytime DYC youth 40
7/11/2023 papermaking DYC youth 27
7/12/2023 Office for the Aging In-Person Adult 3
7/12/2023 storytime JEFF youth 8
7/13/2023 Civil Service 101 In-Person Adult 0
7/13/2023 Sewcial Circle In-Person Adult 7
7/13/2023 Tween Ice Cream Social Off Site youth 0
7/14/2023 Jeff Book Club In-Person Adult 3
7/17/2023 Narrowsburg Knitters In-Person Adult 8
7/18/2023 Pam Golben Pollinators In-Person Adult Cancelled, lack of registration
7/18/2023 Hybrid Open Technical Support In-Person Adult, PCC 2
7/18/2023 storytime DYC youth 29
7/18/2023 3D Hot Air Ballon Art DYC youth 23
7/18/2023 Internet of Things In-Person Adult. PCC 0
7/19/2023 Office for the Aging In-Person Adult 4
7/19/2023 Cricut Meet Up In-Person Adult 4
7/19/2023 Hybrid Open Technical Support In-Person Adult, PCC 2
7/19/2023 storytime NAR youth 0
7/20/2023 Sewcial Circle In-Person Adult 7
7/20/2023 Buck Brook Farm Tour Off Site youth 9
7/20/2023 Tween Soap Felting Off Site youth 12
7/21/2023 Craft Lovers In-Person Adult 8
7/24/2023 Narrowsburg Knitters In-Person Adult 4
7/24/2023 Hybrid Open Technical Support In-Person Adult, PCC 5
7/24/2023 Craft Program NAR youth 0
7/25/2023 Callicoon Book Club In-Person Adult 2
7/25/2023 Introduction to ChatGPT In-Person Adult, PCC 0
7/25/2023 storytime DYC youth 31
7/25/2023 Tracks & Traces DYC youth 15
7/26/2023 Narrowsburg Book Club In-Person Adult 4
7/26/2023 Hybrid Open Technical Support In-Person Adult, PCC 1
7/26/2023 storytime JEFF youth 8
7/27/2023 Lego Challenge JEFF youth 11
7/28/2023 Evan Padua Fishing In-Person Adult 7
7/31/2023 Narrowsburg Knitters In-Person Adult 7
7/31/2023 Hybrid Open Technical Support In-Person Adult, PCC 1











 

DRAFT 

BOARD MEETINGS 

POLICY 

 

 
The Board of Trustees of the Western Sullivan Public Library operates in accordance with New York 

State’s Open Meetings Law (see Education Law §260 and Public Officers Law, Article 7). This law 

requires that board meetings be properly posted and advertised and that they be open to the public, except 

for those portions which qualify as executive sessions. Notice of all board meetings will be sent to the 

news media and posted on the Library’s website and public bulletin board.   

 

Regular Board meetings will take place on the day and time designated by the Board, except as modified. 

The meeting schedule is posted at the Library branches and on the Library’s website. 

 

If a special meeting is scheduled, public notice of the time and place will be sent to the news media and 

conspicuously posted at the branches and on the Library’s website at least 72 hours before the meeting.  

 

Records subject to release under the Freedom of Information Law (FOIL), as well as any proposed rule, 

regulation, policy or amendment that is on the Board agenda and scheduled to be discussed at a Board 

meeting, shall be made available upon request and posted on the Library’s website, to the extent 

practicable, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

If videoconferencing is used to conduct a meeting, the public notice for the meeting shall inform the 

public that videoconferencing will be used. Voting may be done through videoconferencing, provided that 

a quorum is present at the physical location and members can be both seen and heard voting and 

participating from remote locations. The minutes of the meeting must reflect which members participated 

by video conference. 

 

The Director will prepare the meeting agenda and review it with the Board President before posting it to 

the library’s Board Libguide. The agenda will then be distributed to Board members one week before the 

regular meeting. The President or other Board members will submit requests to place matters on the 

agenda to the Director.  

 

 Recording Meetings 

 

Any meeting that utilizes video conferencing shall be recorded and the recording shall be posted to the 

Library’s website within five days of the meeting.  

 

Public Participation at Board Meetings  

 

The Board encourages public participation on library-related matters at Board meetings.  Public Comment 

Period is limited to 30 minutes.  Periods may be extended or added by a majority vote of the Board.  

 

Persons wishing to address the Board shall state their name and address, as well as provide written contact 

information such as email or telephone number on the public comment form. Any group or organization 

wishing to address the Board must identify a single spokesperson and shall state the name of their 

organization and the community in which it is based. 

 



 

DRAFT 

Each speaker is allowed a maximum of three minutes.  Discussion involving individual library personnel 

is not permitted in public session. Persons wishing to discuss matters involving individual library 

personnel should present their comments and/or concerns to the Director during regular business hours. 

 

All speakers are to conduct themselves in a civil manner. Obscene language, libelous statements, threats 

of violence, and statements advocating racial, religious, or other forms of prejudice will not be tolerated.  

Refer to the Library’s Code of Conduct. 

 

Persons making presentations at a Board meeting shall address remarks to the President and shall not 

direct questions or comments to Board members or other library staff.  Board members and the Director 

shall have the privilege of asking questions of any person who addresses the Board. 

 

The President shall be responsible for the orderly conduct of the meeting and shall rule on such matters as 

the time to be allowed for public discussion and the appropriateness of the subject being presented. The 

President shall have the right to discontinue any presentation which violates this policy. 

 

 

Minutes 

 

Written minutes must be kept for all meetings of the Board. The minutes shall be prepared promptly and 

shall set forth an accurate record of votes and actions taken at each meeting. Unapproved minutes shall be 

made available on the library’s website no later than two weeks after the meeting.  Approved minutes will 

be posted on the library website. 

Quorum 

 

The quorum for any Board meeting is five members. No formal action will be taken at any meeting where 

a quorum is not present. Unless otherwise required by law, official action will only be taken by approval 

of the majority of the full Board. 

 

Use of Parliamentary Procedure 

 

The business of the Board shall be conducted in accordance with the authoritative principles of 

parliamentary procedure as found in the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

DRAFT 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FORM 

 

Name Address Email Address or 

Telephone number 

Organization (if 

applicable) 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 



 

Membership Temporary Policy                  1      Adopted June 2015 

          Revised August 2017 

TEMPORARY-MEMBERSHIP 

POLICY 

 

The Western Sullivan Public Library (WSPL) shall provide temporary membership for 

up to six months to persons who are not residents of the Sullivan West Central School 

Districts, subject to the following: 

 

 

Registration: 

1. Potential members need to show appropriate identification in order to obtain a library 

card.   

 

Fees: 

1. The cost of a temporary membership in any branch of the Western Sullivan Public 

Library is $20.00. 

3. All Western Sullivan Public Library fines, fees, and refunds apply to temporary 

memberships. 

 

 

Lending Rules: 

1. Temporary membership allows borrowing from the three branches of the Western 

Sullivan Public Library.  

2. As per Ramapo Catskill Library System ILS policy, temporary members do not have 

direct-access privileges and can only have one hold at a time.  

3. All other lending rules follow the WSPL’s current Membership procedure.  

 

 

Deleted: MEMBERSHIP: 

Deleted: non-resident

Deleted: 17.50 for an individual

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 2. Family memberships are $22.50

Deleted: ANSER

Deleted:  

Deleted: current 



 

Personnel Policy                                              1                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

PERSONNEL 

POLICY 

I. RECRUITMENT, DEVELOPMENT, AND SEPARATION OF STAFF 

 

a. LIBRARY POLICIES 

 

i. All library staff, whether paid or unpaid, are provided with, required to read, 

and be familiar with Library Policies. 

 

b. PERSONNEL RECRUITMENT 

 

i. Employees of the Western Sullivan Public Library become New York State 

Civil Service Employees upon their hire. Positions are classified by the 

Sullivan County Department of Personnel as either Competitive or Non-

Competitive.  

 

ii. Candidates for either full-time or part-time Competitive positions at the 

Library, are hired through the Civil Service Recruitment Procedures, and 

selection of a candidate for a position is made from the appropriate Sullivan 

County Eligibility List. In accordance with Civil Service Regulations, the 

Library must hire a candidate from the top three candidates on the List of 

Eligibles. 

 

iii. In the event that an Eligibility List is not available or candidates from the 

appropriate list have declined to fill the position, the Library may advertise 

locally or nationally for candidates to fill the vacant position. These 

candidates, upon hire by the Library, become Provisional Employees of the 

Library. The provisional employee will be scheduled to take the Civil Service 

eligibility test at the earliest possible date.  

 

iv. After being hired from the Eligibility List, the employee serves a six-month 

probationary period. Upon satisfactory completion, the employee becomes 

permanent. 

 

c. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

 

i. It is library policy not to discriminate on the basis of race, gender, religious 

affiliation, physical or other disability provided that the employee is able to 

perform the required work. Reasonable accommodation will be made for the 

purposes of employment. As long as employees are able to perform the 



 

Personnel Policy                                              2                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

essential functions of their jobs, with reasonable accommodation, they will not 

be terminated. 

 

d. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY POLICY 

 

i. It is the policy of this library not to discriminate on the basis of race, gender, 

sexual orientation, religious affiliation, age or disability.  

 

e. DEFINITION OF STAFF CATEGORIES 

 

i. Full-time employees are hired as such. They generally work a regular 

schedule of 7 hour shifts, 35 hours per week, 1,820 hours per year, exclusive 

of meal breaks, which are unpaid. They are eligible for all of the benefits 

determined by the Board of Trustees. 

 

ii. Part time employees are hired as such. They generally work fewer than 30 

hours per week. The length of their shift is determined by their schedule.  The 

part-time employee's work schedule depends on the service needs of the 

library.  Part timers are eligible for some but not all benefits afforded to full-

time employees. Part-time employees working 17.5 hours or more per week 

are entitled to vacation and sick/personal benefits as outlined in Section IV., 

Benefits. 

 

iii. Job descriptions, as defined by Civil Service, are found on the library’s 

libguide.   

 

f. PERSONNEL FILES 

 

i. Personnel files are the private property of the Library, and are kept at the 

Main Office. They are available only to the employee, his/her supervisor, 

and the library administration. Personnel files may not be removed from 

the Main Office. 

 

g. PERFORMANCE REVIEWS 

 

i. All employees will receive from their supervisor at least one written 

performance review annually. A supervisor may at any time conduct an 

evaluation to determine whether an employee is performing satisfactorily, 

or to accompany an anticipated personnel action. 

 

ii. The employee will have the option of responding to the evaluation in 

writing within 7 calendar days. In any case, the employee will be required 

to acknowledge receipt of a copy of any evaluation or personnel action by 

Deleted:  

Commented [1]: Does this include the Board of 
Trustees? 



 

Personnel Policy                                              3                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

signing the file copy.  Such signature indicates only that the employee is 

aware of the document, with no inference of agreement. 

 

h. STAFF DEVELOPMENT/TRAINING 

 

i. All staff members are encouraged to improve their job skills by attending 

appropriate staff development programs such as classes, workshops, 

meetings, and conferences. The employee’s supervisor and the Director 

must approve attendance at such events on library time. The decision as to 

whether the employee may attend staff development programs, and 

whether they will be reimbursed for their expenses, will be based on the 

appropriateness of the program, library staffing requirements, and 

budgetary constraints. 

 

ii. The Library will pay dues for ALA and NYLA at 100% for Director and 

50% for librarians. If organizational rates are available, the library will 

take advantage of these rates.  

 

iii. Quarterly staff meetings will be held throughout the year for trainings that 

will provide the skills necessary to perform job duties.  

 

i. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES 

 

i. It is the intent of these procedures to provide for the orderly settlement of 

differences in a fair and equitable manner. The resolution of a grievance 

at the earliest possible stage is encouraged. No reprisals will be taken by 

the Director or the Board of Trustees against any person who avails 

him/herself of these procedures. Any personal grievance that is in writing 

will be retained in an appropriate confidential file in the Main Office of 

the library, accessible only to the Director and the Board of Trustees. 

Permanent employees also have certain rights under Civil Service Law. 

 

ii. A grievance is a claimed violation, misinterpretation or inequitable 

application of the policies of the Library set forth in this document or 

otherwise duly adopted by the Board of Trustees concerning work 

conditions, salaries, work schedules and employee benefits. If the 

grievance concerns the possible suspension, dismissal or other 

disciplinary proceedings of a permanent employee, proper legal Civil 

Service Procedures must be followed.  

 

1. Step 1. The aggrieved employee shall orally present his/her 

grievance to his/her immediate supervisor who shall informally 

discuss the grievance with him/her. The supervisor will give 

Commented [2]: Do you ever make a class, workshop, 
meeting or conference mandatory for their position? 
(the Bank does) 



 

Personnel Policy                                              4                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

his/her decision to the employee within 7 calendar days. If the 

grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at this stage, the employee 

may proceed to Step 2. 

 

2. Step 2. Within 7 calendar days after the determination arrived at in 

Step 1, the employee may make a written statement to the 

Director, or if the Director was the immediate supervisor, then to 

the Chairman of the Personnel Committee of the Board, setting 

forth the nature of the grievance and the facts relating thereto, and 

the determination previously rendered. The Director or the 

Chairman shall then notify all parties concerned of the time and 

place of the hearing. Such hearings shall be held within 14 

calendar days of the receipt of the written statement. If the written 

statement was submitted by the employee to the Director, the 

hearing may be held before the Director and/or the Chairperson of 

the Personnel Committee, and/or the Personnel Committee or a 

part thereof. If the employee submitted the written statement to the 

Chairperson of the Personnel Committee, then the hearing shall be 

before said Chairperson or the Personnel Committee or a part of 

the Personnel Committee at the Chairperson's discretion. The 

parties may appear and present oral or written statements 

supplementing their position. A determination in writing shall be 

given to all of the parties involved by the party before whom the 

hearing is held, not later than 10 calendar days after the hearing is 

concluded. If the grievance is not resolved at this state or if the 

employee wishes to appeal the determination, then the aggrieved 

employee may proceed to the next step. 

 

3. Step 3. The employee may, within 7 calendar days after written 

notice of the determination by the Director or the Chairperson of 

the Personnel Committee, make a written request to the President 

of the Board of Trustees for review and determination by the 

Board as a whole. All statements and records of the case shall be 

submitted to the President of the Board within five calendar days 

after the receipt by the President of the written request. The Board 

must hold an executive session within ten calendar days after the 

receipt by the President of the written request for a hearing to hear 

all parties involved and determine the case. The Board of Trustees 

shall render a decision within ten calendar days after the meeting 

and give written notice thereof to parties concerned. The 

determination by the Board of Trustees shall be final and binding 

on all parties concerned, except in cases of Appeal to the State 

Civil Service Commission. 



 

Personnel Policy                                              5                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

 

j. DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

 

i. When an employee's performance or conduct is not satisfactory, the 

supervisor or Director will so advise the employee. Steps will be taken to 

help improve his/her performance or conduct, applying standard 

principles of due process and progressive counseling/discipline. If this 

process fails to influence the employee to return to a satisfactory level of 

performance or conduct, the employee will be subject to dismissal 

procedures as set forth under Civil Service Law. 

 

ii. Dismissals are made by the Library Director in accordance with the 

powers vested in him/her by the Board of Trustees, and in accordance 

with Civil Service Law. The advice and counsel of the Board's legal 

representative may be obtained when advisable. 

 

k. RESIGNATIONS 

 

i. All resignations must be submitted in writing to the Director. Full-time 

and part-time professional staff are expected to give at least 4 weeks 

notice of their intent to resign. Two weeks’ notice is expected from non-

professional employees. The immediate supervisor should be informed of 

all resignations at the earliest possible time. 

 

l. REFERENCES 

i. It is the policy of the Library to provide references only to prospective 

employers or others to whom the current or former employee has asked 

us, in writing, to provide this information. 

 

ii. If the current or former employee has asked us, in writing, the Library 

will only provide a neutral reference which includes the date of your 

employment, whether you still work for us, or the date when your 

employment ended and a chronological list of the positions you've held at 

the Library. Only the Director may provide this official statement of the 

Library.  



 

Personnel Policy                                              6                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

m. DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE 

 

i. It is the policy of the Library to prohibit the use, sale, or dispensing of all 

controlled substances, on its premises. 

 

ii. An employee reporting to work under the influence of drugs or alcohol 

will not be permitted to enter the Library’s premises. If an employee is 

discovered under the influence while on the job, he/she will be required to 

leave the premises and will be escorted home. 

 

iii. An employee bringing controlled substances to work, using them on 

library property, or dispensing or selling any controlled substances on 

library property will be subject to disciplinary action. 

 

II. CONDITIONS OF WORK 

 
a. Work schedule requirements are intended to insure an optimum level of library 

service, while maximizing efficiency, and distributing the workload as equitably 

as possible. Each employee should adhere as closely as possible to his or her 

regular work schedule. Personal time is available to full-time employees and 

part-time employees so that they may take care of private business during the 

work week. No employee or volunteer shall be in the Library during hours the 

Library is closed, unless scheduled to do so, without the express consent of the 

Director. 

 

b. In general, the full-time employee’s work week, exclusive of a one-half-hour 

lunch or supper period, is thirty-five hours: seven hours per day, five days per 

week (Monday through Saturday).  

 

c. At the discretion of the Director, compensatory time can be given to employees 

who might be required to work above their set scheduled hours.  At the mutual 

convenience of the Library and the staff member, this compensatory time should, 

if possible, be taken within the pay period, but must be taken within one (1) 

month of when it was earned. 

 

d. If, in an emergency, an employee works more than forty hours in a week, he /she 

will receive compensation for the hours above forty in accordance with the Fair 

Labor Standards Act. 

 

e. If an employee wishes to switch scheduled working hours with another 

employee, arrangements must be approved by the employee’s immediate 

supervisor, or Director. 

Deleted: T

Deleted:  

Deleted: . 



 

Personnel Policy                                              7                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

LATENESS / ABSENCE 

 

i. Promptness is a condition of employment. All employees are expected to 

be in their assigned place ready to work at the time prescribed. 

Punctuality demonstrates a commitment to the Library, is essential for 

good service, and shows courtesy toward fellow workers. While an 

occasional lateness may be unavoidable, chronic lateness is misconduct 

and will be cause for disciplinary action. 

 

ii. All absences from an employee’s regularly scheduled workweek, must be 

accounted for by proper use of vacation leave, personal leave, sick leave, 

floating holidays or jury duty. If an employee does not have any of these 

categories of time available to use, arrangements can be made in advance, 

at the recommendation of the Director to the Board of Trustees, for the 

employee to receive unpaid leave. Any absence not accountable as 

described above, will be considered an unscheduled absence, which may 

be subject to disciplinary action. 

 

f. EMERGENCY CLOSING OF THE LIBRARY 

 

i. On occasion it may be necessary for the library to close due to inclement 

weather, a power failure, or other unforeseen circumstances. Because of 

our important public service function every effort will be made to keep 

these closings to a minimum. It is the Director's, or his/her delegate's 

responsibility to determine what action is most appropriate. After such a 

decision is made all affected staff members will be notified, if possible.  

Radio stations will be asked to announce such closings and closing will 

be posted on social media and the library’s website. All staff members 

scheduled to work that day will be compensated at their normal rate of 

pay for the hours scheduled. If an employee is scheduled to be off work 

for any reason (e.g. vacation or personal time), no additional 

compensation will be granted or changes in schedule allowed. Employees 

so designated will notify the staff at each branch. 

 

ii. If an employee takes time off because of weather or road conditions when 

the library is not closing, the employee must use his/her vacation, 

personal time or compensatory time.  

 

g. EMERGENCY CLOSING FOR EXTENDED PERIODS 

 

i. At the discretion of the Director and the Board of Trustees, the library 

may decide to close for extended periods of time, in response to 

recommendations from state and local governments, RCLS, or the School 



 

Personnel Policy                                              8                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

District, or on the basis of other considerations. See Infectious Disease 

Protocol. 

 

h. REST PERIODS / MEAL TIMES 

 

i. Every employee who works four (4) consecutive hours or more is entitled 

to one (1) fifteen minute rest period. Rest periods should be scheduled in 

order to maintain good library service. Breaks are not to be used for 

leaving early or coming in late. 

 

ii. Any employee working more than six (6) consecutive hours is required to 

take a thirty (30) minute meal break. This break should be scheduled as 

close as possible to the mid-point of his/her shift, as is convenient for the 

employee, and as is necessary in order to maintain good library service. 

The meal period is uncompensated. Updated 7/2012  

 

i. PERSONAL APPEARANCE AND CONDUCT 

 

i. Employees who have contact with the public represent the library in their 

appearance, as well as by their actions. It is expected that the Library staff 

will always be neat in appearance. Dress should be appropriate for the 

situation. The wearing of suggestive attire, shorts, flip flops, t-shirts, and 

similar casual attire is not permitted. Jeans are permitted on casual Friday 

and weekends.   

ii.  

Smoking is not permitted within one hundred feet of the entrances, exits 

or outdoor areas of a library branchexcept in a residence or on residential 

property. 

iii. Friendly, prompt, and efficient service should be given at all times. 

Patience, poise, tact, and self-control are essential in all contacts with 

both patrons and colleagues. Staff members should be courteous, 

dependable, and willing to cooperate with others. Adaptability to all 

situations, even though they may not be personally pleasing, is essential. 

 

iv. Staff members should promote good morale by eliminating personal 

antagonisms. Criticism of the policies of the Library should be made 

constructively and to the proper authorities. Loyalty to the Library and to 

co-workers is essential. Members of the staff should value their 

contribution to library service and respect the integrity of their colleagues. 

Every effort should be made to promote smooth, harmonious operation of 

the Library. 

 

Deleted: Smoking by employees and volunteers is 

only permitted in designated areas outside the library.

Deleted:  

Deleted:  

Deleted: shall not be

Deleted: and no person shall smoke 

Deleted: any public or association library as defined 

in subdivision two of section two hundred fifty-three 

of the education law; provided, however, that the 

provisions of this subdivision shall not apply to 

smoking in a …

Deleted: ,

Deleted: within the real property boundary lines of 

such residential real property.

Deleted: ¶



 

Personnel Policy                                              9                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

v. Positive working relationships are essential to the teamwork that is 

necessary to ensure effective delivery of Library services and the well-

being of all employees. Behaviors that tend to create a hostile work 

environment are prohibited. These include, but are not limited to, 

rudeness or discourtesy, malicious gossip, false allegations or providing 

false information about an employee, refusal to communicate including 

deliberate failure to share necessary job-related information, and 

avoidance or "shunning".  

 

vi. Violation of this policy, including refusal to cooperate in corrective 

efforts by management such as investigation, mediation or counseling, 

may result in disciplinary action.  

 

vii. It is our policy to maintain an environment free of intimidation, insult, 

and harassment based upon race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, 

or disability. Any such incident should be reported promptly to your 

supervisor.  See WSPL’s Anti-Harassment/Anti-Discrimination Policy for 

further details.   

 

j. MINOR CHILDREN OF EMPLOYEES 

 

i. Employees’ minor children who require parental attention should not 

accompany the employee or be present in the Library when the employee 

is at work. Personal time should be used to deal with childcare problems 

of this nature. 

 

k. HEALTH AND SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES 

i. During times of epidemics, pandemics, or other health-related crises, all 

employees are required to follow guidelines set forth in the library’s 

Infectious Disease Protocol and any other guidelines or plans adopted by 

the Board of Trustees relating to the health crisis.   

ii. Employees may be required to participate in health screenings, including 

but not limited to questionnaires and temperature checks, prior to the start 

of their shift to ensure the health and safety of other employees and the 

public.   

III. PAY PERIOD, WAGES, AND TIME SHEETS 

 

a. Pay rates are fixed by the Board of Trustees of the Western Sullivan Public 

Library. It is the policy of the Library to pay employees at pay rates 

comparable to the rates for similar work in the surrounding areas.   

 



 

Personnel Policy                                              10                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

b. Throughout this policy, the term “year” means the official year of the 

Western Sullivan Public Library, i.e., July 1-June 30.  

 

c. Employees of the Library are paid biweekly. The employee's biweekly 

earnings will be directly deposited into his/her designated account on the 

Friday after the pay period ends.  In the case that a scheduled payday is a bank 

holiday, the payday shall be the previous business day. 

 

d. Full-time employees, defined as those working at least 35 hours per week,  are 

on salary, but are required to account for their time by filing the usual time 

sheet.  Use of benefits, plus hours worked, must be recorded on the time sheet 

to account for time paid. Compensatory time may be approved for hours 

worked above the normal schedule. 

 

e. Part-time employees are paid hourly, and are paid for actual hours worked, 

unless approved vacation or personal time is used. Hours worked above the 

normal schedule are paid at their normal rate of pay. Part-time employees who 

work 17.5 hours or more per week are eligible for vacation and sick/personal 

leave.  Use of accrued benefits according to this policy must be itemized on 

the appropriate time sheet.   

 

f. Full-time, salaried employees who work hours in excess of a normal work week 

will receive an equivalent amount of compensatory time. Compensatory time 

should, if possible, be taken within the pay period, but must be taken within one 

(1) month of when it was earned. 

 

g. In order to receive compensation on a timely basis, All employees must fill out a 

time sheet daily, that includes the actual time worked (e.g.. 9 AM - 5 PM), and 

must be signed by the employee. On their last scheduled workday of the 

biweekly pay period, employees must sign their time sheets and submit them to 

their supervisor. 

 

h. Supervisors will send signed timesheets on or before the Monday before 10am 

immediately following the pay period.  

 

IV. BENEFITS 

a. Sick Leave and Personal Leave 

 

i. Full-time employees receive ten days per year of sick/personal leave after the 

completion of three full months of successful employment. Sick/personal time 

is pro-rated for the first year, calculated from the employee’s date of hire, and 

then renewed on the first of July each year thereafter.  Part-time employees 



 

Personnel Policy                                              11                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

entitled to sick/personal leave receive two hours per year for each hour in their 

normal scheduled workweek. (If, after three full months of successful 

employment, you work 20 hours per week, then you receive 40 hours of 

sick/personal leave per year.) Sick/personal time may not be accrued carried 

over from year to year by either part-time or full-time employees. 

 

ii. Sick/personal leave must be used in no less than half-hour increments. 

 

iii. Unused sick/personal leave is not paid upon termination of employment. 

 

iv. In order to ensure good library service, the appropriate supervisor or Director 

must approve personal leave in advance. Sick leave may be used if the 

employee is sick and unable to report for work. If the employee wishes to use 

sick leave a minimum of two hours’ notice must be given to the employee’s 

supervisor, before the employee’s shift is to begin. (Messages should not be 

left on the library answering machine; employees should contact their 

supervisor directly). 
 

v. If the employee does not have any sick/personal leave available, arrangements 

may be made, at the Director’s discretion, for unpaid leave. Employees who 

do not adhere to these guidelines will not be compensated for any time 

missed, and time missed will be considered an unscheduled absence. 
 

vi. During periods of epidemic or pandemic, the Board may approve granting paid sick 

leave to all employees who are unwell, even if they are not otherwise eligible or have 

no time remaining.  The total sick time granted is determined based on the severity of 

the situation. 

vii. If a staff member not personally ill is required to remain absent because of quarantine 

imposed by a governing authority, or if a staff member is required to self-quarantine, 

the staff member will supply a written statement from their healthcare provider 

stating the period of the required absence and when it is safe for the staff member to 

return to work. The staff member will be paid for their regularly scheduled hours. 

To be eligible for compensation during quarantine leave, healthy employees must be 

ready, willing and able to work remotely on projects and tasks identified by the 

Director during their regularly scheduled working hours, and must complete such 

duties as assigned.  When performing tasks remotely, employees should note the time 

worked through the usual process for logging hours. 

b. Vacation Leave 
 

Deleted:  you wor

Deleted:  

Deleted: k

Commented [3]: ??????? 

Deleted: i



 

Personnel Policy                                              12                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

i. All vacation leave is granted on a pro-rated basis, calculated from the 

employee’s date of hire. Employees may request allotted vacation time after 

three months of successful employment. Vacation requests must be approved 

by the employee’s direct supervisor. 
 

ii. If an employee resigns, their vacation leave will be pro-rated according to the 

amount of time worked in that year. Employees are not entitled to their full 

vacation benefits if they do not work the full year. Unused vacation leave is 

not paid out unless the employee has successfully worked the hours to receive 

the payout. Likewise, if an employee resigns having exceeded their pro-rated 

portion of vacation leave, the value of unaccrued vacation benefits will be 

deducted from their final paycheck.  

 

iii. Full-time employees, with the exception of those specified in (v) below, 

receive two weeks of vacation per year to be granted on July 1st each year. If 

an employee is hired mid-year their vacation allotment will be pro-rated 

according to the number of days left in the year. After five years of 

consecutive full-time employment, employees are entitled to three weeks of 

vacation leave, to be granted on their five-year anniversary and prorated for 

the remainder of the year. After ten years of consecutive full-time 

employment, employees are entitled to four weeks of vacation leave, to be 

granted on their ten-year anniversary and prorated for the remainder of the 

year.  
 

iv.  
 

v. Branch Managers, Programmers, and Multimedia Technicians, after three 

months of successful employment, are entitled to two weeks of vacation leave 

during the first year of employment.  Upon the successful completion of the 

first year of employment, Branch Managers, Programmers, and Multimedia 

Technicians are entitled to a third week of vacation leave to be granted on 

their one-year anniversary and prorated for the remainder of the year. After 

ten years of successful consecutive service, Branch Managers, Programmers, 

and Multimedia Technicians are entitled to four weeks of vacation leave to be 

granted on their ten-year anniversary and prorated for the remainder of the 

year. 

 

vi. Full-time Directors, after three months of successful employment, are entitled 

to three weeks of vacation leave during the first year of employment. Upon 

the successful completion of the first year of employment the Director is 

granted an additional week on their one-year anniversary and prorated for the 

remainder of the year, for a total of four weeks. After five years of 

consecutive successful service, the Director will be granted an extra week on 

Deleted:  not listed below

Deleted:  (full-time status is defined as an employee 

who works 35 or more hours a week)

Deleted: At the discretion of the Director, full-time 

employees may “carry over” up to five days of 

vacation into the next benefit year. The vacation 

carryover form must be submitted by June 30th each 

year.

Commented [4]: Moved to the end of the section with 
part-time carry over language 



 

Personnel Policy                                              13                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

their five-year anniversary and prorated for the remainder of the year, for a 

total of five. After ten years of successful consecutive service, Directors are 

entitled to six weeks of vacation leave to be granted on their ten-year 

anniversary and prorated for the remainder of the year. 

 

vii. Part-time employees eligible for vacation benefits are entitled to two hours 

of vacation leave per year for each hour in their regular work week.  (An 

employee who was hired to work twenty hours a week received forty hours of 

vacation per year). Part-time employees may not request leave until after three 

months of successful employment. Vacation leave is renewed on July 1st of 

every year.  
 

viii. After five years of consecutive successful service, part-time employees 

eligible for vacation benefits are entitled to three hours of vacation leave per 

year for each hour worked in their regular workweek, on their five-year 

anniversary and prorated for the remainder of the year.  After ten years of 

consecutive successful service, they are entitled to four hours of vacation 

leave per year for each hour worked in their regular workweek, on their ten-

year anniversary and prorated for the remainder of the year. 

 

ix. As a matter of courtesy, vacation should be scheduled at least one month in 

advance if you know when you will be taking the time off. Vacation is 

scheduled on a first come first served basis. Employees are encouraged to 

schedule their vacation leave as soon as possible, vacation leave may be 

approved at any time of the year, but approval will be subject to the Library’s 

staffing needs. If requests for vacation are received on the same day and for 

the same time period, the senior staff member will have first choice. All 

vacation requests are subject to approval by the Director. 

 

x. At the discretion of the Director, full-time employees may “carry over” up to 

five days of vacation into the next benefit year. The vacation carryover form 

must be submitted by June 30th each year.  For part-time employees, up to 

one-half of their initial accrued leave may be carried over into the next benefit 

year. 

 

c. Paid Family Leave (PFL) 

The library has opted into the NYS Paid Family Leave plan and will follow the 

guidelines set forth by this plan. Currently, the library covers the cost of the insurance 

for each employee.  Information below is from https://www.ny.gov/programs/new-

york-state-paid-family-leave.    

i. Eligibility 

Deleted:  Up to one-half of accrued leave may be 

carried over  into the next benefit year.

Commented [5]: Moved to the end of the section with 
full-time carryover language 

Formatted: Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No

border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :

(No border)



 

Personnel Policy                                              14                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

1. Employees with a regular work schedule of 20 or more hours per week 

are eligible after 26 weeks of employment. 

2. Employees with a regular work schedule of less than 20 hours per 

week are eligible after 175 days worked. 

ii. Benefits 

1.   If you are eligible and have a qualifying event, you can take up to 12 

weeks of job-protected, paid time off.  The wage benefit is 67 percent 

of your average weekly wage (AWW), capped at 67 percent of the 

Statewide Average Weekly Wage (SAWW). Generally, your AWW is 

the average of your last eight weeks of wages prior to taking PFL, 

including bonuses and commissions. The SAWW is updated annually. 

 

iii. Qualifying Events 

1. New Child: You can take PFL during the first 12 months following 

birth, adoption, or fostering of a child. Expectant mothers cannot take 

PFL for their own pregnancy. PFL for the birth of a child begins at 

birth. It is not available for prenatal conditions. 

2. Serious Illness: You can take PFL to care for a close relative–spouse, 

domestic partner, child or stepchild, parent or stepparent, parent-in-

law, grandparent,  grandchild or sibling (biological, adopted, half, or 

step)--with a serious health condition.  You cannot take PFL for your 

own health condition. 

3. Military Active Service Deployment: You can take PFL to assist with 

family situations arising when your spouse, domestic partner, child, or 

parent is deployed abroad on active military service or has been 

notified of an impending military deployment abroad.  You cannot use 

PFL for your own qualifying military event. 

4. COVID-19 Quarantine: Paid Family Leave may also be available for 

use in situations when you or your minor dependent child are under an 

order of quarantine or isolation due to COVID-19. See 

PaidFamilyLeave.ny.gov/COVID19 for full details. 

 

iv. Your Rights and Protections 

5. You have job protection, ensuring you can return to the same job (or a 

comparable one) when you return from PFL. 

6. You can keep your health insurance while on leave. If you contribute 

to the cost of your health insurance, you must continue to pay your 

portion of the premium cost while on leave. 

Deleted: 16

Deleted: Benefits and weeks of leave phase in over 

four years.  Benefits are a percentage of your 

average weekly wage, capped at that same 

percentage of the New York State Average Weekly 

Wage, as calculated annually by NYS’s Department 

of Labor.  These benefits are 50% of average 

weekly wage in 2018, 55% in 2019, 60% in 2020, 

and 67% in 2021.  In 2018 weeks of leave is 8 

weeks, with coverage increasing to 10 weeks in 

2019 and 2020, and12 weeks on 2021.

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.75",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black

Deleted:  

Commented [6]: This seems to imply that there are 
situations in which one can take PFL for someone 
else's pregnancy. 

Deleted:  

Deleted:  

Deleted:  (

Deleted: or

Deleted: and

Deleted: )

Deleted:  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.75",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black

Deleted:  

Deleted: out 

https://labor.ny.gov/stats/avg_wkly_wage.shtm


 

Personnel Policy                                              15                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

7. You do not have to take all of your sick and/or vacation time before 

using PFL. 

iv. Taking Paid Family Leave 

1. Notify your employer 30 days prior to leave, when practical. 

2. Employee fills out claim form according to employer’s instructions 

and is responsible for providing supporting documentation when 

required. 

3. Claim can be submitted before or up to 30 days after the start of your 

leave.  The insurance carrier must pay or deny your request within 18 

calendar days of receiving your completed forms. 

4. While out on PFL, employees will continue to accrue sick and 

vacation time. 

5. Employees may use accrued sick/vacation time in conjunction with 

PFL benefits in order to receive full pay during their absence. 

d. Jury Duty 

v. Absence for jury duty will be compensated for only the employee’s normally 

scheduled hours of work. 

vi.  Arrangements for jury duty must be made when the notice is received. 

vii. Jury duty pay is to be given to the Library. 

 

d. Holidays 

i. Full-time employees receive thirteen paid holidays per year: New Year’s Day, 

Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Presidents’ Day, Memorial Day, Junteenth, July 

4th, Labor Day, Columbus Day/Indigenous People’s Day, Veteran’s Day, 

Thanksgiving Day and the day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve Day, and 

Christmas Day.   

ii. For full-time employees, if a holiday falls on a day that the Library is 

normally closed or on a day an employee is not normally scheduled to work, it 

will be designated as a floating holiday (7 hours) to be used within a year of 

that holiday, unless an alternate day of observation is scheduled; Use of 

floating holidays must be approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor 

or Director. 

iii. Part-time employees are paid for the hours they would have worked on 

holidays that fall on days the employee is normally scheduled to work. 

e. Bereavement 

i. Each employee shall receive up to three days bereavement leave in the event 

of the death of any immediate family member, without charge to any accrued 

Commented [7]: Not sure I get this.  If you use 
sick/vacation time you get full pay; if you use PFL 
benefits you get partial pay.  How can you use them in 
conjunction? 

Commented [8R7]: I believe the employee receives up 
to 67% of their salary from PFL.  So their sick vacation 
time can be used to make up the 33% of their salary 
that is lost during their time off. 

Deleted:  (or immediate like) 



 

Personnel Policy                                              16                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

leave. Such leave is to be used at the time of bereavement. “Immediate family 

member” shall include spouse, child, parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, 

sibling, or other person with whom the employee may reside and have an 

immediate-family-like relationship. 

 

f. Health Insurance and Buyouts 

i. Full time employees are entitled to individual health insurance benefits 

offered by Western Sullivan Public Library.  Eligibility for coverage or a 

buyout will not begin until the first day of the first month after full-time 

employment. 

ii. Part-time employees are offered the option of purchasing their health 

insurance through the library at the rate the library is charged by the insurance 

provider.  Full-time employees are entitled to an insurance buyout if they 

refuse coverage and provide proof of coverage by another carrier. 

iii. If the library’s insurance company offers additional coverages on an 

individual basis, they will be offered to the eligible staff at their own cost. 

iv. Insurance Buyouts will be paid once a year on June 30th for the preceding 

twelve months. Buyouts can be prorated on a case-by-case basis. Employees 

are required to provide a copy of their current insurance card and complete the 

library’s Insurance Buyout Form and submit it to the Director by May 30th of 

each fiscal year.  

v. Our employee medical insurance policy requires that Medicare become the 

primary provider at age 65.  For any full-time employee 65 years of age or 

older, the library will reimburse the cost of Medicare Part B and pay the cost 

of Medicare Supplemental Insurance and Medicare Part D, provided the 

employee is not eligible for reimbursement or coverage of such costs by 

another agency or company.   

g. Social Security 

i. All employees are covered under the Social Security Act.  The library pays the 

employer’s portion of Social Security. 

 

h. Retirement 

i. Full time employees are required to join the New York State Local Employee 

Retirement System (NYSLERS).  Part time employees may opt out in writing. 

 

i. Workers Compensation 

Deleted: F

Deleted: M

Deleted: (s)

Deleted:  

Deleted: a cost of 

Deleted: (12) 



 

Personnel Policy                                              17                   Adopted October 18, 2000 

Revised December11, 2000, February 12, 2001, February 2009, June 2016, July 2017, March 12, 2018, March 11, 2019, March 16, 

2020, June 2020, October 2021, May 2022, June 2022 

i. Employees may be eligible for Workers Compensation for on-the-job injuries.  

Employees need to notify their supervisor immediately and an accident report 

needs to be completed. 

 

j. Disability 

i. In the event that an employee cannot perform duties because of illness or 

incapacity unrelated to a work injury, they may become eligible for NYS 

disability insurance. 

 

 

 


